
68310 Federal Register / Vol. 61, No. 250 / Friday, December 27, 1996 / Notices

Information Mail.’’ At that point, a
menu will be displayed that has an
option ‘‘U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission’’ that will take you to the
NRC Online main menu. The NRC
Online area also can be accessed
directly by typing ‘‘/go nrc’’ at a
FedWorld command line. If you access
NRC from FedWorld’s main menu, you
may return to FedWorld by selecting the
‘‘Return to FedWorld’’ option from the
NRC Online Main Menu. However, if
you access NRC at FedWorld by using
the NRC’s toll-free number, you will
have full access to all NRC systems, but
you will not have access to the main
FedWorld system.

If you contact FedWorld using Telnet,
you will see the NRC area and menus,
including the NRC–EDIN Menu.
Although you will be able to download
documents and leave messages, you will
not be able to write comments or upload
files (comments). If you contact
FedWorld using FTP, all files can be
accessed and downloaded but uploads
are not allowed; all you will see is a list
of files without descriptions (normal
Gopher look). An index file listing all
files within a subdirectory, with
descriptions, is available. There is a 15-
minute time limit for FTP access.

Although FedWorld can also be
accessed through the World Wide Web,
like FTP that mode only provides access
for downloading files and does not
display the NRC–EDIN Menu.

For more information on NRC bulletin
boards call Mr. Arthur Davis, Systems
Integration and Development Branch,
NRC, Washington, DC 20555, telephone
(301) 415–5780; e-mail AXD3@nrc.gov.

Examine copies of comments received
at: The NRC Public Document Room,
2120 L Street NW (Lower Level),
Washington, DC.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Robert S. Wood, Office of Nuclear
Reactor Regulation, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555, telephone (301) 415–1255, e-
mail RSW1@nrc.gov; or for the Antitrust
SRP, Michael J. Davis, telephone (301)
415–1016, e-mail MJD1@nrc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Draft
Standard Review Plan on Antitrust
describes the procedures used by the
NRC staff to implement the antitrust
review and enforcement prescribed in
Sections 105 and 186 of the Atomic
Energy Act of 1954, as amended and
will replace the original NUREG–0970.
These procedures are principally
covered by the Commission’s Rules and
Regulations in 10 CFR 2.101, 2.102, 2.2,
50.33a, 52.77, 50.80, and 50.90. These
procedures set forth the steps and
criteria the staff applies in the antitrust

review of combined construction
permit/operating license applications
and amendments to construction
permits, operating licenses, and
combined licenses. In addition, the
procedures describe how the staff
enforces compliance by licensees with
antitrust license conditions.

The Draft Standard Review Plan on
Power Reactor Licensee Financial
Qualifications and Decommissioning
Funding Assurance describes the
process the NRC staff uses to review the
financial qualifications and methods of
providing decommissioning funding
assurance required of power reactor
licensees. This draft SRP will be used as
the basis for reviews as the electric
utility industry moves from an
environment of rate regulation toward
greater competition. The NRC is
concerned that rate deregulation and
disaggregation resulting from various
restructuring actions involving power
reactor licensees could have adverse
effects on the protection of public health
and safety.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 20th day
of December, 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
John C. Hoyle,
Secretary of the Commission.
[FR Doc. 96–32951 Filed 12–26–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

Oconee Nuclear Station, Units 1, 2, and
3; Notice of Consideration of Issuance
of Amendments to Facility Operating
Licenses, Proposed No Significant
Hazards Consideration Determination,
and Opportunity for a Hearing;
Correction

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.
ACTION: Notice of Issuance; Correction.

SUMMARY: This document corrects a
notice appearing in the Federal Register
on December 18, 1996 (61 FR 66699),
that considers issuance of amendments
to Facility Operating License Nos. DPR–
38, DPR–47, and DPR–55, issued to the
Duke Power Company. This action is
necessary to correct an erroneous date.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Michael T. Lesar, Chief, Rules Review
Section, Rules Review and Directives
Branch, Division of Freedom of
Information and Publications Services,
Office of Administration, telephone
(301) 415–7163.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: On page
66701, in the first column, in the second
complete paragraph, the date is changed
from ‘‘January 2, 1997’’, to read
‘‘January 17, 1997.’’

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 20th day
of December, 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
Michael T. Lesar,
Chief, Rules Review Section, Rules Review
and Directives Branch, Division of Freedom
of Information and Publications Services,
Office of Administration.
[FR Doc. 96–32949 Filed 12–26–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

[IA 96–100]

In the Matter of John Maas;
Confirmatory Order Prohibiting
Involvement in NRC-Licensed
Activities (Effective Immediately)

I

Mr. John Maas was employed as
President of National Circuits Caribe,
Inc. (NCCI) in Fajardo, Puerto Rico, in
1991. NCCI possessed and used
radioactive materials at its Fajardo,
Puerto Rico facility under the authority
of a general license issued by the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)
pursuant to 10 CFR 31.5. The general
license authorized the licensee to use
byproduct material contained in devices
designed and manufactured for the
purpose of gauging or controlling
thickness of materials during industrial
processes. NCCI filed for bankruptcy
under Chapter 11 in Puerto Rico in
March 1991 but the case was dismissed
in October 1991 due to lack of response
from the company. The Fajardo facility
was abandoned sometime around
October 1991.

II

On June 23, 1993, the NRC was
notified by the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico’s Bureau of Radiological
Health (Bureau) of the discovery of
radioactive sources and a quantity of
hazardous chemicals on property leased
from the Puerto Rico Industrial
Development Corporation (PRIDCO) by
NCCI. Bureau personnel indicated that
the abandoned sources had been found
in an abandoned building by PRIDCO
personnel.

The NRC, Region II, staff performed
an inspection of the site on June 30,
1993, and determined there were five
sources containing microcurie amounts
of Thallium-204 or Promethium-147.
The sources were in backscatter gauges
that were authorized for use by NCCI
under an NRC general license, specified
in 10 CFR 31.5. The staff determined
that the source/gauges had been
abandoned at the site since October
1991. NRC and PRIDCO oversaw the
disposal of the gauges, which was
completed in September 1994.
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The NRC Office of Investigations (OI)
conducted an investigation,
documented in OI Report No. 2–93–044
dated January 31, 1996, to determine
whether NCCI had deliberately
abandoned licensed material at the
plant site. Based on the evidence
developed and reviewed, OI determined
that during approximately October
1991, the five generally licensed
backscatter gauges were deliberately
abandoned by the licensee, with the
knowledge of the President of the
company, Mr. Maas.

Mr. Maas, the former President of
NCCI, was prosecuted by the
Department of Justice and on December
5, 1995, pled guilty to the charges of (1)
willfully and knowingly storing or
causing to be stored hazardous wastes
for longer than ninety days without
having first obtained a permit or interim
status for said storage, in violation of
Title 42, United States Code, Section
6928(d)(2) (a) and (2) willfully and
knowingly abandoning devices
containing byproduct radioactive
materials, in violation of Section 223 of
the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as
amended, Title 42, United States Code,
Section 2273 and 10 CFR 31.5(c)(6). On
August 8, 1996, Mr. Maas was sentenced
to probation and required to perform
community service.

III
The Commission’s regulation in 10

CFR 30.10 requires, in part, that any
employee of a licensee may not engage
in deliberate misconduct that causes a
licensee to be in violation of any
regulation issued by the Commission.
Based on the facts set forth above, the
staff concluded that Mr. Maas engaged
in deliberate misconduct that caused the
licensee to abandon devices containing
byproduct material in violation of 10
CFR 31.5(c)(6). As President of NCCI,
Mr. Maas was responsible for ensuring
that NCCI conducted activities in
accordance with NRC requirements. The
NRC must be able to rely on licensees
and their officials and employees to
comply with NRC requirements. Mr.
Maas’ actions in causing NCCI to violate
10 CFR 31.5 have raised serious doubts
as to whether he can be relied on to
comply with NRC requirements.

The NRC staff sent a letter dated
October 10, 1996, to Mr. P. M. Sandler,
Mr. Maas’ attorney, containing the
proposed terms of this Order which are
set out in Section IV of this Order. The
proposed terms are that Mr. Maas be
prohibited from any involvement in
NRC-licensed activities for a period of
five years from the date of this Order,
and is required to notify the NRC of his
first involvement in NRC-licensed

activities during the five years following
the prohibition period. The NRC staff
requested Mr. Sandler to review the
proposed items with Mr. Maas and, if
Mr. Maas agreed to the proposed terms
of this Order, have him indicate his
agreement with those terms by signing
an enclosed acknowledgement. By letter
dated October 22, 1996, Mr. Sandler
transmitted the acknowledgement of the
proposed provisions of the Order which
had been signed by Mr. Maas. In the
acknowledgement, Mr. Maas indicated
that he understood the proposed
provisions, committed to complying
with them, and consented to the
issuance of an Order confirming these
provisions. In the acknowledgment, Mr.
Maas also waived his right to have a
hearing on such an Order.

I find that Mr. Maas’ commitments as
set forth in the letter of October 22,
1996, are acceptable and necessary and
conclude that with these commitments
public health and safety are reasonably
assured. In view of the foregoing, I have
determined that public health and safety
require that Mr. Maas’ commitments in
the October 22, 1996 letter be confirmed
by this Order. As stated above, Mr. Maas
has agreed to this action. Pursuant to 10
CFR 2.202, I have also determined,
based on Mr. Maas’ consent and on the
significance of the conduct described
above, that public health and safety
require that this Order be immediately
effective.

IV
Accordingly, pursuant to sections 81,

161b, 161i, 161o, 182 and 186 of the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended,
and the Commission’s regulations in 10
CFR 2.202, 10 CFR 30.10, and 10 CFR
150.20, it is hereby ordered, effective
immediately, that:

1. For a period of five years from the
date of this Confirmatory Order, Mr.
Maas is prohibited from engaging in or
exercising control over individuals
engaged in NRC-licensed activities.
NRC-licensed activities are those
activities which are conducted pursuant
to a specific or general license issued by
the NRC, including, but not limited to,
those activities of Agreement State
licensees conducted pursuant to the
authority granted by 10 CFR 150.20.
This prohibition includes, but is not
limited to: (1) Using licensed materials
or conducting licensed activities in any
capacity within the jurisdiction of the
NRC; and (2) supervising or directing
any licensed activities conducted within
the jurisdiction of the NRC.

2. At least five days prior to the first
time that Mr. Maas engages in, or
exercises control over, NRC-licensed
activities within a period of five years

following the five-year prohibition in
Section IV.1 above, he shall notify the
Director, Office of Enforcement, U.S.
Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20555, of the name,
address, and telephone number of the
NRC or Agreement State licensee and
the location where the licensed
activities will be performed. The notice
shall be accompanied by a statement,
under oath or affirmation, that Mr. Maas
understands NRC requirements, that he
is committed to compliance with NRC
requirements, and that provides a basis
as to why the Commission should have
confidence that he will now comply
with applicable NRC requirements.

The Regional Administrator, Region
II, may relax or rescind, in writing, any
of the above conditions upon a showing
by Mr. Maas of good cause.

V
In accordance with 10 CFR 2.202, any

person adversely affected by this
Confirmatory Order, other than Mr.
Maas, may submit an answer to this
Order, and may request a hearing within
20 days of its issuance. Where good
cause is shown, consideration will be
given to extending the time to request a
hearing. A request for extension of time
must be made in writing to the Director,
Office of Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
D.C. 20555, and include a statement of
good cause for the extension. The
request for a hearing shall, in writing
and under oath or affirmation,
specifically set forth the matters of fact
and law on which any other person
adversely affected relies and the reasons
as to why the Confirmatory Order
should not have been issued. Any
answer or request for a hearing shall be
submitted to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Attn: Chief,
Docketing and Service Section,
Washington, D.C. 20555. Copies also
shall be sent to the Director, Office of
Enforcement, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20555,
to the Assistant General Counsel for
Hearings and Enforcement at the same
address, and to the Regional
Administrator, NRC Region II, 101
Marietta Street, NW, Suite 2900,
Atlanta, Georgia 30323 and to Mr. Maas.
If a person other than Mr. Maas requests
a hearing, that person shall set forth
with particularity the manner in which
his or her interest is adversely affected
by this Confirmatory Order and shall
address the criteria set forth in 10 CFR
2.714(d).

If a hearing is requested by a person
whose interest is adversely affected, the
Commission will issue an Order
designating the time and place of any
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hearing. If a hearing is held, the issue to
be considered at such hearing shall be
whether this Confirmatory Order should
be sustained.

In the absence of any request for
hearing, or written approval of an
extension of time in which to request a
hearing, the provisions specified in
Section IV above shall be final 20 days
from the date of this Confirmatory Order
without further order or proceedings. If
an extension of time for requesting a
hearing has been approved, the
provisions specified in Section IV shall
be final when the extension expires if a
hearing request has not been received.
AN ANSWER OR A REQUEST FOR
HEARING SHALL NOT STAY THE
IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS
ORDER.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland this 12th day
of December 1996.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
James Lieberman,
Director, Office of Enforcement.
[FR Doc. 96–32950 Filed 12–26–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

Advisory Committee on Reactor
Safeguards

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.
ACTION: Notice of renewal of the
Advisory Committee on Reactor
Safeguards (ACRS).

SUMMARY: The Advisory Committee on
Reactor Safeguards was established by
Section 29 of the Atomic Energy Act
(AEA) in 1954. Its purpose is to provide
advice to the Commission with regard to
the hazards of proposed or existing
reactor facilities, to review each
application for a construction permit or
operating license for certain facilities
specified in the AEA, and such other
duties as the Commission may request.
The AEA as amended by PL–100–456
also specifies that the Defense Nuclear
Safety Board may obtain the advice and
recommendations of the ACRS.

Membership on the Committee
includes individuals experienced in
reactor operations, management;
probabilistic risk assessment; analysis of
reactor accident phenomena; design of
nuclear power plant structures, systems
and components; and mechanical, civil,
and electrical engineering.

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission
has determined that renewal of the
charter for the ACRS until December 23,
1998 is in the public interest in
connection with the statutory
responsibilities assigned to the ACRS.
This action is being taken in accordance

with the Federal Advisory Committee
Act.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Andrew L. Bates, Office of the Secretary,
NRC, Washington, DC 20555; telephone:
(301) 415–1963.

Dated: December 23, 1996.
Andrew L. Bates,
Advisory Committee Management Officer.
[FR Doc. 96–32952 Filed 12–26–96; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590–01–P

OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND
BUDGET

Federal Use of Standards

AGENCY: Office of Management and
Budget, Executive Office of the
President.
ACTION: Notice and request for
comments on proposed revision of OMB
Circular No. A–119, ‘‘Federal
Participation in the Development and
Use of Voluntary Consensus Standards
and in Conformity Assessment
Activities.’’

SUMMARY: The Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) is revising Circular
A–119, ‘‘Federal Participation in the
Development and Use of Voluntary
Consensus Standards and in Conformity
Assessment Activities.’’ Public Law
104–113, the National Technology
Transfer Act of 1995 (hereinafter known
as P.L. 104–113), was passed by
Congress to codify existing policies in
A–119, to establish additional reporting
requirements, and to authorize the
National Institute of Standards and
Technology (NIST) to coordinate
conformity assessment activities of the
agencies. P.L. 104–113 was signed into
law by the President on March 13, 1996.
This proposed revision of Circular A–
119 implements the new law and makes
certain other modifications.
DATES: Comments are requested on the
proposed revisions to Circular A–119 no
later than February 25, 1997.
ADDRESSES: Direct written comments to:
Information Policy and Technology
Branch, Office of Information and
Regulatory Affairs, Office of
Management and Budget, NEOB Room
10236, Washington, D.C., 20503. E-mail
comments may be sent to:
huthlv@a1.eop.gov.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Virginia Huth, Information Policy and
Technology Branch, Office of
Information and Regulatory Affairs,
Office of Management and Budget,
Room 10236 NEOB, Washington, D.C.,
20503. Telephone: 202–395–3785. The
text of this proposed revision and of the

current OMB Circular A–119 are
available electronically on the OMB
Home page in the documents section at
http://www.whitehouse.gov/WH/ EOP/
OMB. The current version of A–119 is
available in paper format by contacting
the OMB Publications Office at (202)
395–7332. To request a fax of the
current A–119, call (202) 395–9068.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Section
12(d) of the National Technology
Transfer Act of 1995 (P.L. 104–113, or
‘‘the Act’’) codified the policies of
Circular A–119. Section 12(d)(1) states
that ‘‘Except as provided in paragraph
(3) of this subsection, all Federal
agencies and departments shall use
technical standards that are developed
or adopted by voluntary consensus
standards bodies, using such technical
standards as a means to carry out policy
objectives or activities determined by
the agencies and departments.’’

To carry out this requirement, Section
12(d)(2) states that agencies and
departments ‘‘shall consult’’ with those
bodies and ‘‘shall * * * participate’’
with them in developing voluntary
consensus standards ‘‘when such
participation is in the public interest
and is compatible with agency and
departmental missions, authorities,
priorities, and budget resources.’’

Finally, Section 12(d)(3) states that,
where it would be ‘‘inconsistent with
applicable law or otherwise
impractical’’ to use standards that those
bodies develop or adopt, an agency or
department may use other standards;
however, the head of the agency or
department must send to OMB ‘‘an
explanation of the reasons for using
such standards.’’ The law states that,
beginning with fiscal year 1997, OMB
will transmit to Congress and its
Committees an annual report
summarizing all explanations received
in the preceding year.

This Circular provides instructions,
beginning with FY 97, for agencies to
report explanations of instances in
which agencies used standards which
were not developed by voluntary
consensus standards bodies. For FY 96,
OMB issued a letter on May 17, 1996,
to the heads of departments and
agencies notifying them of the Act and
of the new reporting requirement. For
the period March 13, 1996 (date of
enactment of the Act) to September 30,
1996, any explanations that agencies
have generated should be transmitted to
NIST no later than January 31, 1997, for
forwarding to OMB.

The Act’s legislative history confirms
that Section 12(d) was intended to
codify the Circular’s policies. See 142
Cong. Rec. H1265 (daily ed. February
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